
 
1 
 

 
 

Notice of a meeting of 
Licensing Committee 

 
Friday, 5 February 2016 

2.15 pm 
Pittville Room - Municipal Offices 

 
Membership 

Councillors: Roger Whyborn (Chair), Diggory Seacome (Vice-Chair), Andrew Chard, 
Wendy Flynn, Adam Lillywhite, Anne Regan, Rob Reid, Pat Thornton, 
Jon Walklett and Helena McCloskey 

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the 
meeting 

 

Agenda  
    
1.   APOLOGIES  

    
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

    
3.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

These must be received no later than 12 noon on the fourth 
working day before the date of the meeting 
 

 

    

4.   MINUTES OF LAST MEETING 
To approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 8 
January 2016. 

(Pages 
3 - 8) 

    
5.   APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S 

LICENCE 
MR DEAN MAKEY 

(Pages 
9 - 12) 

    
6.   BRIEFING NOTE 

Licensing up-date  
(Pages 
13 - 16) 

    

7.   ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIRMAN DETERMINES TO 
BE URGENT AND WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 

 

    

8.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
4 March 2016 

 

    
 

Contact Officer:  Annette Wight, Democracy Assistant, 01242 264130 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�

�
������

��������	
�����
��������
�����������	���������	��
	���������������
����������

�

����������	
��������
�


�������������������������
����������������

�

����������

�	
���

	���� ������	
����
���
�����������������������������
������
�
������
�����	�
������

�������������
������

������
��
���������� ���!
��
��
��
��"���
��#����$%���

�
�	����������������� ��%%����

�����
���
�����&�

�
�

 �������
�
�

��� ����������
�'������$�����������(���)������*
�������	��%����+�
�

��� �������������������������
,�
��
�

��� �����������������
,�
��
�

���  ��������������� �������
!
����
*��$��)��
����$�������
��
�����
�-����������./�0�������''��(����
��
$��
����$�����*��������+�
�

��� ������������������� ����������������������������!��������
�!��!��!"�#�
!
����
��������
$�
��1))�������
�����&���
����*�����
����'�����������
���
�
�''�������
�)����!
���������2����
����$��*��
����������)���'����$$��
����'�����
3�'��
���$����������$����
���
�
�$��
��
��'�(���
���*�$����!
���������
'����$�$����-/������
����������)�����/4//����//43/��(���������)��
�����%+��
�''�
��&���$
�������'���*����)��
��'��'�$���$��*��*�������
��
���������
�'��
����
�''�
��&�2+�
�
!
��1))�������'�������
�����5�����
$�
������
������(���)���� ��

�
��
6
)������
���
����*
�$��)��''����
����)��
�������$��
���
���$��
��)����
7��*��$���$
������
$���*������
��
�����%��)��������$����*
���
����$��
�����
����
��������+��"����
��
*����
����
���
$*������
����
��
���''����
������
������
�
��
)�������
����
����
�
�$���*����������(����*��
��
�
������
��
�*�$���
���
�
���''����
����$������
�����'������������$����*
���
��'��'�$��������$��
��
�
���$��
���
����
���''����
��
��������������
���������
������$���$��
������
���
����������
���&��*����)�����
����
$�
�+�
�
!
��1))����$��������
�����
���$�������
���
���''�������
�$*�5��������
��
���
���
��)����3����.������$����
��
���$��
������
���''��(����)��
��'��'�$���
��$��
�)����
���������$+�
�

Agenda Item 4
Page 3



�
�
�

�

�
��.���

��������	
�����
��������
�����������	���������	��
	���������������
����������

�

8
���'������9*�$���
$�)����������$���
��1))����������)�����
����
��'�(���
��
�����$��
���
���$���$��
��*����������
����$��''�
��&������$�'���*�����
�.//.�
�
��$�������
��������
������$��
���
���$������
���
��������'����������
��
�
*���
�$����
���
����$����
)�������
����
��������
���*���
��
���������
�'��
���$�
'��(������
���
��
���
��
���$+���!
��1))�����$������
������
���%
����
��
����
$��
$��)��
�������$�����
��
����
��:������$���
�
���
�������
�$���*���
�����
��*���*��
��
�
������
��
�*�$+�
�
#��;���$��
���$�
������������)��� �''��$��
�����
��
��#$� �''�����$���
���
1'������
$�#�
��������!
���������������
�����
��
�����'��$�
��
���
��
�''����
���
��#���
���$�
���$��
(��������$'��%��
�$*''�����)��
���''�������
+��
�
8
���$'�
$�����������$<�'��(��*$�9*�$���
$�����
��1))������#���
���$�
�
��
)�������
����
�������$���������������
���
��
��
���+0�����'��
����$��
���
���$����-�'��'����
���
����
�������$��
���
���$��
��
��'��(������
����
�
���
��
�����
�$���*��������
��
���������
������+��"����
��
*����
����
���
����''�����)���
�
����&��*��'��������������)����
�������$��
���
���$��������*����*���
�'��������
�
��'����$�$���*������$�������'���
���
�����*��������(����
�����
�$���������
�
�(�
�
�+��#���
���$�
���
)�������
����
��������
�''���������'���
��
�������
�����
�
������
�(���
���)��
�������$��
������
�����������*���$%����
��
���������������(���*����
$��������
�����
����
���.������$��
���
���$��
�
���$��
�� ����+��	��
����������������
���
�
�$�
������
��
������'���������#��
�
���$�
��
)������������$��
����
����
�
�$��
�$�
�������)���
��
�$��
�����
�
��
���������
���
���
����
�����
�����
�$�'�����*����$������
��������������
�
%��'�
�����
��
��)*�
��*����
$�����
��'����$�$+��"��)�����
����
����
���
���
����
������
��$���
�����
����
�����*������������
�%��'�
�����
��
����

���
$������$��
���
��
������*������'
���$��)������$��
���
������
��
�$��*�)���$����
����������
����������'����$�$��
��
��
������������
�����
�������+���
�
#���
���$�
���
��
*����
����
�����*������
�''���������'���
����
�����
����

�(���������$�����
����$��
�������������$�)��*����������$��)��
��'*�������*��
)�(�*�����������$�������
����
���
��
����
�)��
���)��
����
�
�$��$�
��)�����
�$�
��*�����$����������$$�)����*$�����$��
�������
��$��))+��"��)�����
����
�
�$�
�
��$��(�$��������$���
��*�����������+��#���
���$�
�$
�����������$�'
���$�
�)������'���
$��)������
��������$��
��
������5*$���(�������
�
���
�+���
�
#�����$�(��������
���
$����*���
���''����
����)��
����
�
�$��
��
���
���'���
�����
��
����$��
��*�����
���
�������$����
����)���*���(��
��
�+��!
��
�''����
�<$�������������'������
���
��
������
��'��)���
���)��������
���
�
�$����
����
���*
���$����$*���*
��
�$���*��
�'����
����
��
��*����$���
����))�����)��
��
�������*����������'�����+�"���������
����
�$�������$��
����
�
�$����
����
���
��
���
$���������'�
����
���)��
���$�����$
��
���
��
���$���)���*����)�
=������<�'����$�$��
��)�����
�$�����������$�
�������
��
*�����
$�����
���*�+�"��
���$$*����������$��
����
�������$�����
�*�
�$��������*��������)��������
��
'��$�
��
���
*$���(����
��
���*����$���+���$��
������*�������
���.������$��
��
-���
�
�$������(�����
�����
��)�����
�$���*���
��������'��������
����$�������
�
����)���)���*���
�����*�������
������
��)��
������
$�+�
�
#�����$��������
���
������*���
����$��
������
%$��
��)����
�����������������
����
��'��'�$��������$��
��
���
����$���)�$�)�������������$��)��
��'*������
��
�����
��$��))����%�
���
�������*
����$��������$'�����
��
��'�(���
���
��*��
����
���'�'�$���
����$��
�������%�
���������
���
����$��������$'�����
��
���
���
���
�������
��$���'�$��'$�����
���
���
���������
���
��'�$$�������$%$����
�*$�
��

Page 4



�
�
�

�

�
��3���

��������	
�����
��������
�����������	���������	��
	���������������
����������

�

���$$�$+��#���
���$�
���'������
����
���������
��&'����
�����'����������
������
����
���$��))��
����*�����
�������
����
��
��$�)�������*�����
$+��"��$���$$���
�
���������
������%�
�����*��:��������(��$�$��)�����
���&������$%����
����$$�$�
�
������$$���$�$����+������)������*�������������$��(������
*$����*��
���
��

*������)�'��'�����(�
���
��
���*�+��#���
���$�
���$�
����
�)�(�*���)�*$�
��
'��������
�������$$�$��$�$*���$�����������������$������*��������))��*������
�
)�����$��(�
���
�'��$�������$$�$�����
��:��*$�����$��
��
���������
�������
�����$���
����$��
��3.��*$�����$�*$�
���
�������$��
��
��'��(������
����*������
$��(����
�
���������$$�$+��#���
���$�
�9*�$���
����)���
���'����$�$��
�
�
����

����������������������������$$�$��
�
��
����'�(���
�$��
��
����$�
�
)������
����)��
���������$���(���������
������
���)����>�
�������+�
��
8
���'��������9*�$���
��#���
���$�
��
)������������$��
����
������$���
���%����$'����������
��
�������$��
����
�
�$��
��
��'��(������
���
���
��
�����
�$���
��������
��$��))���*���*$������
�
������$$�����
��'�(���
�+�
�
1
���������9*�$���
���
�����
����$���
�$���(����
��
��(���
���������
��
��
��
�������*
�������)����
���������
)�������
���������
����$���
�$����
�
�.0�3/�
�����$��)��
���$�����$
��
�+���#���
���$�
�����
���'�������
��������*����
������
�
��&����:�'��'����*�$�������$���*$�����$���*������*$�
���
���*�$���������$��
�
�
�������������5*$��)���$��%�
���������
��
���(�
�
���
���
����
��'����$�$���*���
���$�������'�+�
�
!
���
������(������(�����
��
�$��''�������
����
�������'����$$��
�)�������
'��
���$����������$��
���
���$+�
�
?'�
���(���������$�-�)����0�����
$�+�
�
�����$����!��%�&��'����	���	�&
������(
��������)�����	���)��)�*)+�,�
����)�����(
�%�-.��
�������������%�(����/
���%����'�'(�����	����������)��
�&&
�����	���	���	�(���	'&���(
��+��)��)���
��������������������	
��,0���
�
!
���
����$*�����$����
�������
������
�
���
�$�����$��
����
���
����
��
�''����
����)��
�������
������$��
���
���$������
����
�%��'�
�����
��
��
��*
���<$� �(���
��!����$��
���
���$���$��
�7*����)���*$���
��
�*���
������
�
������*$���
���''�������
���$�����
$���
����*
���<$�����������
�� �������
�
�
�����*
�$��
����
���''�������
���$��*������
��
��
�����
��'�$�������$%����
'*�����
����
��
��$�)�����
��'��������
��
�������
��������
������$��������$'�����
�
�
��'�(���
�����
���$�����$�������%�
���������
���
��$���'�$��'$�����
��
�
���
����
����$%$����
�*$�
�����$$�$��
����$��
���)���������
��)�����
�����
%�
�
��
��
��
���+�
�

��� �����������������������������������������
!
����
��������
$�
��1))�������
�����&���
����*�����
����'�����������
���
�
�''�������
�)����#�$$�@��$���	�$���%���)�;*��������*$�)�����$�����������
����
$�
��
���$����
����
��)�����
�����
%$�)��������>�������$*��
��3��&�3���
��
��
 ����
�����*�$����	����$��
�$�)����;�
*��������'�����;*
�������'��������
��
,�(������)����/:4//�����:43/�#�
���������������
��/:43/�����:43/��
�
���*������
���*
���+���''�
��&���$
������
���������
��)��
��'��'�$��������
��
'���
��
���''�
��&�.���(���
��������)��
�������
��*
��+��!
��1))�������
��
*���
�
����
������5�����
$�
������
������(����
����(�$����
���������$��*$��
��
$������
���''�������
��
��
�$��������
�'��
��
������*���
��+��!
��1))�����
�������
�����
���$��
����
�$��''�������
������)*$����
��
�����*
�$��)�

Page 5



�
�
�

�

�
��-���

��������	
�����
��������
�����������	���������	��
	���������������
����������

�

�''����
����
��
����
�%��'�
�����
��
��$�����$��'�A��
������$�������$����
���
���
��*
�9*���
���

�
��
���
���
5����
���)��
�����
��
����$��*����
�����
��

��
���+�
�
8
���$'�
$�������9*�$���
�)���������������
��1))�������'�������
����
��
�
��$���$��������$<��
�����)�����%��$�����*$����
���������)��
�� ����
����
�
��
��������������(����'������������
����*
�������
����
������
����$+��1
��
��������&'��$$�����
���
����*���
����5�����
��
��
�����*
�$��)��
����'���)�
����$�$������$�
��)�������'������
���$�)�(�*�������
���
���
������)����
�$�����$
��
�$��
���
�������������(��������)��
��
����
����
����
��))����
��
�$�
�''�������
+�
�
!
���''����
����$��
(��������$'��%��
�)�(�*���)�
����''�������
+��#�$$�	�$���%��
�
)������������$��
���$
����*������$����
��
����
�����
%$��5*���$��
��
$����
��$���$�������$��
����
����
������%)�$���'���
$��
��
����
��$
��%$+��8
�
��$'�
$�����"*))%�
$<���5�����
��������������'������
��$
��
���*'�������
���
��
*��
��
�
����
�����
��*�����*
�
��'���
$��
��$
��)�����
������$��
�
���
���
��
*������
����
����'������
����
��
��
����$��
�����+��#�$$�	�$���%��
����*����������'���)�
�����(�$�����
*����������$+�
�
	��
������������
����5�����
��)���$��*���
���
��
��
�����#�$$�	�$���%����'������
�
���$
��
������
�*
�����
����'��$$��
�)��������������)��
������
$�
�������
�
����
�$�'���
���$����������''��(����
��
������
���(�$������$*�����
���
�''�������
�9*��%��+�!
��1))�������(�$����
����
��'�������*���
�
���
��'���
�$�
���

����������
��''��(����
���
*$����
��''�������
�)�����'���
���*�������
��*�
�
�
��
������
������+��1
��
�$�'��
����
���
����9*�$���
����
��7��������
��
�������
��'���$����
�����$$��
��
�� ����
������$���
�������������%��$������
���������
���+�
�
#�$$�	�$���%����
��
*����
���$
������������
��
����5�����
��
����
��'
�$�����
�''����
����)��
����>������$�
����
�%��'�
�����
��
��$�����$��'��)����
��
 ����
�����
���
)������������$��)�.���))���
���'���
$��
���$
����
$�������
�����$*���������
�����
��������������
���
����
�������������*$����$�����$���*'�

��)������
�
*���
������*������'���*��$��)��
�$������
�����������+��#�����$�
)�(�*�����
��
*���'���
���
��
����
�����
$��
$��)�B)��&�-)����$�$��������
�
��
��
��>���+�
�
8
���'������9*�$���
$�)����������$���
���''����
��$�������
����
�����$�
�$
��

���
����''�����)��������
����
$�
���
�#����1��������
�������������$�
����*$��$
��
������
���(�$�������
������
$�
��������)��
��
���
����
������%���
�
���
���
��$���$����%��������
���
��
�$����������
�$������$+��#�$$�	�$���%��
��$����(�$���������$��
����
����5�������)�
�������$���*������'���*�������
���
�*$�
�$$�'����$�$����
������*���
���$
����*���
�(����$�����$���
����
����������
�������������%���
��(��*���$����
��$+�
�
	��
������������
����5�����
$�)����7����"*))%�
$��
���
���
����

���2*$�
�$$�
 ���
��$
�'���
���
����)�����
������
<�������$$��
��������$$*�$��
���
����
��
����������
�����������
$������
���(������'���*����
���
��2���*�
��$����
����
�
��
�����
���
���$��)����
��
��'��)�����������)�������$+���
��
������������$��
'��
�����*���
����
��'���
��''�����)�����$�
���)�����
��
���������'����)��+���8
�
��
$*������
����
�������$���
���
����$�������
����
���''�������
����
��
����>����
��*���
�(�����
���)*$����
���(����)��
���''����
����$������
������
�
����
��
��$��
�����
��
*���
�
��
�$�'��'�$�����*������$*''�����+���

Page 6



�
�
�

�

�
��0���

��������	
�����
��������
�����������	���������	��
	���������������
����������

�

�
!
���''����
�������������
�
����
����$��
�����
��
*���'���
��
���
���'��������
9*�$���
�$�������
����
��
*����*������$���*'��
��/���
*��$��������'��'����
��
�
������������
���'��%�
�������
�����*���)����
����
�����%��)�������������+��#�$$�
	�$���%����$�
�''�����'��%��
������
�������
���������
��
*������
���''��'������
$'�����*�������$�'��
�����*���
���(�
����$���������������
��
�� ����
����)���
�����
���
��*
�����
��)����
�����%��$����������
�����$��)��
�����+���
�
!
���
������(������(�����
��+0+��$*�5��������
���
�
����)���$��
��)��
��$����+�
�
?'�
���(���������$�C�)����/�����
$�+�
�
�����$����!��%� ����1����,�"���
�2�3���&&
�����	��/	�����������������*�
�	������(���&&�	4����
(5�����	��)���)��*��	/�����*���	��)��+		����)
�%�
���'�'(����+���������/�����)����)��&�	&	��
�+����
���(
���������2��&��*�
+��)��)����������������	
��,0�
�
!
���
������$
���#�$$�	�$���%��$*���$$��
�����������$���
������*
��
'��$�
�$����
��*'��
��*$�
�$$+�
�

	�� ��$��"���������$����!�������$��6����������
!
����
��������
$�
��1))�������
�����&���
����*�����
����'�����������
���
�
�''�������
�)�������(�����)�#��@���
���(�������$<� ��(����"�������(��<$�����
���
 "���B��
��
���$��*��)�����
������
�:����������./�B+���#������$�
�����

*������)�'�
�����'��
�$��
�
�$����(��<$�����
����������$��)��
��
�������*���
���
�
��
�����%���*
��'�'��$���
��
���)������������������
�$��'��
�$�����
����*
����
�
��������
������
�$���*������
��'��������9*�����
�$+���8
��
�����
���)��
�$���
��
�������
������
����*�
���������������)���������$������
$������)�#������$�
�����
�����)����
��'��'���'��$�
����
����$*�
�������
��+�
�
8
���$'�
$�����9*�$���
$�)����������$���
��1))������
)�������
������������
�
���#������$�
���
�������������
��)��
��$'����
����$����(�
���
��
���
����
����$��
$���*���
����
��� 3/�)�
���
��������
����$��&�����
��3/�'
+��"���(���
�$�3�B�'��
�$���*��������(�
�)������
��))�
����
����(�
��
���#������$���$�
��������3�'��
�$��
����
�����$��
�������*���������$�
������$$*�����
��������$�
��$$��
�
���*�����
��$'�����������
��
����&��$$�(�����(���3/�'
+��1
���������
����'��
���*���
���$'���������
�$$���*�$�$�������)��
��))�����)�����)��$��
��
(�����
��)��
��$'������$�
����*�
��(����
�������+��!
��1))�������(�$���
������$��
��������(��<$�����
�����$�$*$'�
��������.�'��
�$��
���
���#������$�

���C�'��
�$+��!
��1))������
)������������$��
�����&�����(��$����������
����(���

��$������$��)��
����9*�����
������
)�����
����*
�����)��
����
(�����
$+������(��$�
�������$��$�
������'���)��
����
�����
$��
����9*�$���
��
��
�$�'��
����$��
��
��
��$���
����
�����(��$�
������'�$$��
���
��1))�������
)�������
���#������$�
���
�����������
$�������
�$�9*�$���
+�
�
#������$���$��
(�������������$$��
�������������
��
���'�����$����
������
���
$��''���
�$���
�������'�����
����
(�����
$�����
����*
���+��"��)*��
�����
�����
��
���������
��
���
�������������*���
�$��9*�$���
�
���
��
����*�����
����������
���*���
��
*������)�'��
�$�
��
����
�
�$�����
��+�
�
8
���'������9*�$���
$��#������$��
)������������$��
���
�����
<��
�(���
��
'�$$�
���$��
�
���*�
����
��������))�
��$�������
����
$����
�)������-/�'
�������
�����3/�'
��������
�����
���
��
���������6(�$
����
���������
������
��	���$�

Page 7



�
�
�

�

�
��B���

��������	
�����
��������
�����������	���������	��
	���������������
����������

�

��*
����*���
�7��*��$���+���"��)*��
����������
���
��
������
����(�
��$�
����
��
�����)��C��
��
������
�������
$�����&�����(���)���3�����$+���$������
���))�
��$�
��������
�
���������(����$
����'�������)�������)�D���
�
$�����������9*�$���
����)�
�
������$������$�
�)����
�$������
��
�#������$���'������
������
�*�
�
��
���
���
$����'��$�
���'������$���
������$�
����������$�
�5*$�������*�%+��
�
���������9*�$���
����)�#������$�
�����%�
��
����������(�
����$���
���
��
1))������
)�������
���
��
���
����$��
��'�����������%���
�$���$��
����
����
�
����
$����B�:���
�
$����+��"���(���#������$�
�����%�
��
��)�������������)����
?
�����$�+��
�
8
���
$�����
���
��
���#������$���$���)����
��'��'���'��$�
����
����$*�
���
����
����������$��������(�$����
����
�����*��������
����
�����
��
���#������$�
���'������
���������&�����(�
����$�����
�
���$'���)����'�������)�������
����$��
��
$������$$*�
����������
����
�
�+�
�
#�����$���5�*�
�������0+-3������
$������
����������
������
(�
�������0+0:+�
�
!
���
������'�������
����
������������
�����%�
���$����*$�(�����
��
�$���������
�*���
����$������))�
��$�
���
�''�
����
���������(����$
����'�������)�������
������$�������)��
���'�
��
�����$$*����������
����
�
���
������$%�#������$����
���'������
���������$�+��!
���
����������*���
����
�����+-+.+�
�
?'�
���(���������$�C�)����/�����
$�+�
�
�����$����!��%� ����+���(��*�4�����+�������+�����*�����(����7
������	�
�
�����/


,��	'&
�������$�����8�����4��*������+��)���9�'	��)�����)���	+��
�8&����0�
�
�


�� ��#���!������ ���!���!��� �������� ����������������������
"!��!���������������������
,�
��
�

��� ����������:�� �������
0�����*����./�B�
�
�
�
�
�

������	
����
�
�)���'���

�

Page 8



Mr Dean Makey 15/01623  Last updated 27 January 2016 

 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council 

 
Licensing Committee – 5 February 2016 

 
Application for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence  

 
Mr Dean Makey 

 
Report of the Licensing Officer 

 
 

1. Executive Summary and Recommendation  
 
1.1 Mr Dean Makey has applied for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence. 
 
1.2 Mr Makey’s certificate from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) shows a number of 

convictions and a caution. The details of these are contained in the separate background papers. 
 

1.3 Mr Makey has been interviewed by a licensing officer and a report of that interview is contained in 
the background papers.  

 
1.4  In light of this Mr Makey’s application has been brought before the Committee to ensure that he is a 
 fit and proper person to hold such a licence. 

1.5  The Committee can: 

1.5.1 Grant Mr Makey’s Private Hire driver’s licence, subject to Mr Makey completing all the 
relevant tests and assessments, because the Committee is satisfied that he is a fit and 
proper person to hold such a licence; or 
 

1.5.2  Refuse the licence if the Committee resolves that Mr Makey is not a fit and proper person to 
 hold a Private Hire driver’s licence. 

1.6 Implications 

1.6.1    Legal There is a right of appeal against a refusal of a licence which in the first 
instance is to the Magistrates' Court. 
 
Contact officer: One Legal 
E-mail: legalservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272015 

 
 
 

2.    Background 
 

2.1 The Borough Council must be satisfied that the holder of a Private Hire Drivers licence is a fit and 
proper person to hold that licence (Section 59 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976). 

 

Agenda Item 5
Page 9



Mr Dean Makey 15/01623  Last updated 27 January 2016 

 

3. Policy Considerations - Relevance of Convictions, Cautions and Fixed Penalty 
Notices in Relation to the Licensing of Drivers and Operators 

 
3.1 Decision making in relation to licensing is an onerous duty, dealing with both the livelihood of the 

Licensee/Applicant and the risks to the safety and comfort of the public. 
 
3.2 Each case will be decided on its own merits. The Council will always consider the full facts of the 

case and any mitigating or other circumstances before reaching a decision. 
 
3.3 The overriding consideration is the safety of the public. The Council has a duty to ensure so far as 

possible that those licensed to drive hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are suitable persons 
to do so, that they are safe drivers with good driving records and adequate experience, sober, 
courteous, mentally and physically fit, honest and not persons who would take advantage of their 
employment. 

3.4 Some discretion may be appropriate if the offence is isolated and there are mitigating 
circumstances. Similarly, multiple offences or a series of offences over a period of time are likely to 
give greater cause for concern and may demonstrate a pattern of inappropriate behaviour which will 
be taken into account. 

3.5 The Council will only consider spent convictions if it appears to be relevant for deciding whether the 
applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence and that justice cannot be done in the case, 
except by admitting or requiring evidence relating to that spent conviction. 

3.6  For the purpose of these guidelines formal cautions and endorsable fixed penalties shall be treated 
 as though they were convictions. 

3.7  Violence 

Drivers of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are often entrusted with the care of vulnerable 
persons.  
 
It is comparatively easy for an unscrupulous driver to take advantage of such vulnerable persons.  
 
The Council seeks to minimise risks associated with children and young persons and for that 
reason a more serious view will be taken where offences of violence involve children or young 
persons. 
 
Where the commission of an offence involved loss of life a licence will normally be refused.  

 
In particular an application will normally be refused where the applicant has a conviction for violence 
such as those listed below, or similar offence(s): 

 
a. Murder  
b. Manslaughter  
c. Manslaughter or culpable homicide while driving  

 
In general an applicant with convictions for violence, as listed below (or similar offences), which are 
less than 10 years old, is unlikely to be considered favourably. 

  
a. Arson  
b. Malicious wounding or grievous bodily harm (s.20 Offences Against the Person Act 1861) 

 which is racially aggravated (s.29(1)(a) Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
c. Actual bodily harm (s.47 Offences Against the Person Act 1861) which is racially aggravated 

 (s.29(1)(b) Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
d. Grievous bodily harm with intent (s.18 Offences Against the Person Act)  
e. Grievous bodily harm with intent (s.20 Offences Against the Person Act)  

Page 10



Mr Dean Makey 15/01623  Last updated 27 January 2016 

 

f. Robbery  
g. Possession of firearm  
h. Riot  
i. Assault Police  
j. Common assault with racially aggravated (s.29(1)(c) Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
k. Violent disorder  
l. Resisting arrest  

  
In general an applicant with convictions for violence, as listed below (or similar offences), which are 
less than 8 years old, is unlikely to be considered favourably. 

 
a. Racially-aggravated criminal damage (s.30 Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
b. Racially-aggravated s.4 Public Order Act 1986 offence (fear of provocation of violence) 

 (s.31(1)(a) Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
c. Racially-aggravated s.4A Public Order Act 1986 offence (intentional harassment, alarm or 

 distress (s.31(1)(b) Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
d. Racially-aggravated s.2 Protection from Harassment Act 1997 offence (harassment) 

 (s.32(1)(a) Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
e. Racially-aggravated s.4 Protection from Harassment Act 1997 offence (putting people in 

 fear of violence) (s.32(1)(b) Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
f. Racially-aggravated s.5 Public Order Act 1986 offence (harassment, alarm or distress) 

 (s.31(1)(c) Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
g. Assault occasioning actual bodily harm (s.47 Offences Against the Person Act)  

 
In general an applicant with convictions for violence, as listed below (or similar offences), 
 which are less than 5 years old, is unlikely to be considered favourably. 

 
a. Common assault  
b. Affray  
c. S5 Public Order Act 1986 offence (harassment, alarm or distress)  
d. S.4 Public Order Act 1986 offence (fear of provocation of violence)  
e. S4A Public Order Act 1986 offence (intentional harassment, alarm or distress)  
f. Obstruction  
g. Possession of offensive weapon  
h. Criminal damage  

 
3.8 Drugs 
 

If any applicant has previous convictions related to drugs and was an addict at the time of the 
offences, then they will normally be required to show evidence of 5 years free from drug taking after 
detoxification treatment before a licence will be granted.  If detoxification treatment was not 
undertaken the applicant will need to provide other medical evidence to demonstrate that they are 
no longer dependant on drugs. 

 
An application will normally be refused where the applicant has more than one conviction for 
offences related to the possession of drugs and the convictions are less than 5 years prior to the 
date of the application. 

 
An application from an applicant who has an isolated conviction for an offence related to the 
possession of  drugs within the last 3 years will require careful consideration of the facts. 

 
3.9 Offences of Dishonesty 
 
 Drivers of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are expected to be persons of trust. It is 
 comparatively easy for a dishonest driver to defraud the public by demanding more than the legal 
 fare and in other ways. 
 

Page 11



Mr Dean Makey 15/01623  Last updated 27 January 2016 

 

 Passengers may include especially vulnerable people.  
 
 Members of the public entrust themselves to the care of drivers both for their own safety and for fair 
 dealing. In certain situations drivers will know that a property is empty whilst the occupants are 
 away on holiday for a set period of time after taking them to the airport or railway station.  
 
 The widespread practice of delivering unaccompanied property is indicative of the trust that 
 businesses put into drivers. 
 

For these reasons a serious view is taken of any convictions involving dishonesty. In general an 
applicant with convictions for dishonesty, as listed below, which are less than 4 years old, is unlikely 
to be considered favourably. 

 
a. Theft 
b. Burglary 
c. Fraud 
d. Benefit fraud (including offences under ss.111A and 112 of the Social Security   

  Administration Act 1992) 
e. Handling or receiving stolen goods 
f. Forgery 
g. Conspiracy to defraud 
h. Obtaining money or property by deception 
i. Other deception 

 
 

 4. Licensing Comments 

4.1 Members must be satisfied that Mr Makey is a fit and proper person to hold a Private Hire driver’s 
licence. 

 
4.2 Mr Makey has been interviewed and has provided explanations of the circumstances relating to 

each offence. The interview notes are contained in separate background papers. 
 
4.3 The way in which convictions, cautions and fixed penalties affect licence applications is set out in 

the Council’s policy. The relevant extracts are shown above and are also referred to in the 
background papers. The Committee must promote its policy and only deviate in exceptional 
circumstances.  If the Committee chooses to deviate from the policy they should give clear and full 
reasons for doing so. 

 
4.4 Mr Makey has been sent a copy of this report and invited to attend this meeting to speak in support 

of his application and to answer members’ questions or to be represented. In considering the 
application on its own merits Members should have regard to the adopted Probity Guide. 

 

 
Background Papers Service Records 

Report Author  Contact officer: Mr Philip Cooper 
E-mail: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 775200 

 

Page 12



 

 

 

 

Briefing 
Notes 

 

 
Committee name: Licensing Committee 
 
Date: 5 February 2016 
 
Responsible officer: Licensing Team Leader  

 
 
This note contains information to keep Members informed of matters relating to the work of the 
Committee but where no decisions from Members are needed.   
 
If Members have questions relating to matters shown, they are asked to contact the Officer 
indicated. 
 

 
In December Members requested data relating to new Private Hire driver applications.  This 
request was made in response to a meeting that was held with private hire operators expressing 
concern about a drop in the number of new private hire drivers applying for licences. 
 
The operators alleged that the policy change in December 2014 had an impact on the number of 
new drivers applying for a licence and/or passing the council’s assessment criteria. 
 

Policy Background  
 
A review of the Council’s taxi and private hire licensing policy was undertaken in 2014 that resulted 
in a revised policy being adopted and implemented in December 2014.  The relevance for this 
briefing note is the revised fitness assessment criteria for new drivers.  The revised policy 
introduced the following changes to new driver fitness criteria: 
 

• Requirement to be proficient with English; 

• Safe driving assessment is now being undertaken by the DVSA (previously GCC’s driving 
assessment unit); and  

• Enhanced medical checks. 
 

Meeting with Operators  

 
As previously stated, a meeting was held with the operators concerned.  The outcome of the 
meeting identified two potential issues: 
 

• The length of time it takes to get a DVSA driving assessment booked; and  

• The difficulty of the knowledge test and consideration whether private hire drivers should 
be exempt on the basis of advances in satellite navigation systems and that private hire 
drivers know where they are going prior to the commencement of their journey (unlike 
public hire drivers). 

 
Other matters included the length of time it takes to get a licence and the general drop in 
applications. 
 

Data  

 
In response, the committee has requested officers to provide them with data to enable them to 
come to an informed conclusion with regards to whether any policy changes should be 
recommended in response to the request by the operators. 

Agenda Item 6
Page 13



 

 

 
 

1. Average application processing end to end time for new private hire drivers: 

 

2014 60 days 

2015 84 days 

 
The average increase in the number of days in 2015 can be attributable to: 
 

• The new policy that certainly had an impact due to the increased nature of the fitness 
assessment for new drivers: 
 

o The new DVSA driver’s assessment bookings have prolonged the process.  
Furthermore, if drivers have to retake the assessment this caused further delays. 
 
Officers do however now believe that undue delays with the DVSA have now been 
resolved following a meeting with them.  Too early to assess the impact of this due 
to lack of sufficient data since the meeting but there has been a drop in the number 
of complaints about this which may be indicative of an improved picture. 

 

2. Number of new private hire applications received  
 Comparable (15 v 14) 

2014 50 total applications  2015 31 total applications � 

21 completed (42%) 16 completed (51%) � 

29 abandoned (58%) 15 abandoned (49%) � 

 

3. Number of new private hire applications received (breakdown) 

 

 2014 2015 Comparable (15 v 14)  

January 1 3  � 

February  5 1 � 

March  3 1 � 

April 2 5 � 

May 7 3 � 

June 3 5 � 

July 3 2 � 

August  3 1 � 

September 11 3 � 

October  6 0 � 

November 3 5 � 

December  3 2 � 

  

4. Other Local Authority – Fitness Criteria  

 

Assessment  CBC GCC SDC FoD SGC CDC TBC 

Enhanced DBS ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ 

Local Knowledge Test ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ 

Medical  Group 2 driver 
standard 

☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ 

Other medical ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Driving 

Assessment 

DVSA Driving 
Assessment 

☒ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

County Council ☐ ☐ ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ ☒ 

Page 14



 

 

Driving 
Assessment  

English Proficiency  ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Evidence of right to work ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☒ ☐ ☒ 

 
Cheltenham’s fitness criterion is broadly similar to that of Gloucester and South Gloucestershire 
with the exception of the requirement to undertake an additional English proficiency test.   
 

Local Knowledge Test Pass/Failure rates (2014/15) 
 

Average rate – pass on first attempt 54% 

Average rate – pass on second attempt 38% (those that had to re-sit) 

Two or more failures  8% 

 
Data across the two years (i.e. 2014 & 2015) were broadly similar.  This would be expected 
because the local knowledge test has largely remained unchanged and unaffected by the policy 
change. 
 
The majority of applicants do pass the test on the first go.  The most common areas for failing the 
test are (in order): 
 

• Highway Code (self-study) 

• Geographical knowledge (self-study) 

• Law & conditions (applicants supplied with study material) 
 

 
Contact Officer: Louis Krog 
Tel No: 01242 264217 
Email: louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING
	5 APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE
	6 BRIEFING NOTE

